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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements of TIRUPATI
REELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2021, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind-AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements.




Information Other than the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s

Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind-
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind-AS
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind-AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind-AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind-AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: -

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B,

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has
been paid / provided by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.




3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG. NO.: 011074N

ANSHUMAN GOEL
PARTNER, ACA
M.NO.: 557797

Date: 21 April 2021
Place: New Delhi
UDIN # 21557797AAAAALS8858



SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
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G-80, LAJPAT NAGAR-I, NEW DELHI-110024
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(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT REFERRED TO
IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL & REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us and on the basis of examination of records all the assets have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. As informed
to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As explained to us and on the basis of examination of records all the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company save in respect of
Building constructed on the leasehold land as disclosed vide Note No. 3(b) in Note
3 (Property Plant & Equipment) of the attached Standalone Ind-AS Financial
Statements.

The inventories (except Stock in Transit) has been physically verified during the year
by the management, the periodicity of verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company. As informed to us the discrepancies notice on physical
inventories and book records were not material in relation to the operation of the
company and the same has been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanation given to us the company has not granted
any loan to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities,
as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus,
reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.




(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(x111)

(x1v)

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income tax, duty of customs, Goods & Services tax
(GST), Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues were outstanding as
at 31% March, 2021 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they become
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Duty of
Custom and Goods & Services Tax (GST) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us we are of the opinion that
the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company has applied the term loan raised for the
purpose for which it was raised. The company did not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year under
review.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given
by the management, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
Company nor any fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

Since the company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind
AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of review
of documents, we are of the opinion that the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review.




(xv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as mentioned under the provisions of section 192 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934.

Date: 21 April 2021
Place: New Delhi
UDIN # 21557797AAAAALS8858

For SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG. NO.: 011074N

ANSHUMAN GOEL
PARTNER, ACA
M. No.: 557797



“Annexure B” to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to the clause (f) under ‘Report on other legal and Regulatory requirements of
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TIRUPATI
REELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India” (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the Standalone
Ind-AS Financial Statements, and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial
Statements, included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with
reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind-AS financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind-AS financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind-AS financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind-AS Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
IRM REG. NO.: 011074N

ANSHUMAN GOEL
PARTNER, ACA
M. No.: 557797
Date: 21 April 2021
Place: New Delhi
UDIN # 21557797AAAAALS858



TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
Not As at As at
ey 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 22,31,22,782 23,60,29,660
Right of use assets 4 21,94,586 29,26,118
Financial assets
(a) Loans 5A 12,86,027 12,79,227
(b) Other financial assets 6A 2,25,00,000 1,07.24,985
Non-current tax assets (net) 7C - 3,73,832
Deferred tax assets (net) 7F - 1,01,32,175
24,91,03,395 26,14,65,997
Current assets
Inventories 8 12,88,04,188 | 10,92,49,753
Financial assets !
(a) Trade receivables 9 15,562,63,497 12,83,56,611
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 10 2,40,542 1,15,80,679
(c) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1 3,04,00,000 2,13,00,000
(d) Loans 5B 2,55,000 -
(e) Other financial assets 6B 2,28,556 1,46,120
Other current assets 12 4,60,22,410 2,76,49,638
36,12,14,192 29,82,82,801
Total Assets 61,03,17,587 55,97,48,798
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 6,00,00,000 6,00,00,000
(b) Other equity 14 13,49,08,930 11,44,93,845
19,49,08,930 | 17,44,93,845
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 15A 6,64,86,536 | 7.66,17,836
(b) Other financial liabilities 16A 19,17,756 | 29,51,278
Provisions 17A 7,10,867 | 5,55,190
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7F 1,76,51,452 ' -
8,67,66,610 | 8,01,24,304
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 158 8,39,111 -
(b) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 4,90,43,889
Total outstandmg‘dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 27.47.73,559 21,04,90,519
and small enterprises
(c) Other financial liabilities 168 4,69,89,100 4,01,40,043
Other current liabilities 19 7,65,090 13,95,979
Provisions 17B 6,920 3,336
Current tax liabilities (net) c 52,68,268 40,56,883
32,86,42,047 30,51,30,649
Total Equity and Liabilities 61,03,17,587 55,97,48,798
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2
Contingent liabililies and commitments 30
Other notes 1o accounts 31 -

The accompanying nctes are an integral part of the Financial Stalements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tirupati Reels Private Limited

CIN: U 2320L2C:ﬁ£275797
5 1
] /
# wvv)

Suresh Kumar Jajodia
Director

DIN : 00201 ;
X2
Pradeep Ganshyambhai Ratnani

Company Secretary
Membership No.41096

As per our report of even date

FOR SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 011074N

Anshliman Goel
Partner, ACA
Membership No. 55778

Date : 21.04.2021
Place : New Delhi



TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 67,15,60,401 91,51,35,927
Other income 21 ’ 69,74,813 47 05,070
Total Income i 67,85,35,214 91,98,40,997
EXPENSES ‘
Cost of materials consumed 22 | 47,80,90,210 60,35,21,286
Purchases of traded goods 23 | 3,66,794 6,85,72,203
Changes in inventories of finished goods, traded goods and work-in- 24 3421311 (94.84,079)
progress
Employee benefits expense 25 2,86.84,716 2,15,73.450
Finance cost 26 1,76,64,311 2,02,84,803
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 1,66,28,462 1,40,57,070
Other expenses 28 7,38,16,450 8.50,50,085
Total Expenses 61,86,72,253 80,35,74,818
Profit before tax 5,98,62,961 11,62,66,179
Income tax expenses
Current tax 1,00,06,145 1,94,07,936
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period 19,73,267 15,492
Deferred tax (credit)/charge 2,76,85,048 (1,17,60,992)
Total tax expense 3,96,75,361 76,72,436
Profit for the period 2,01,87,600 10,85,93,743
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 3,15,162 3,69,532
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (87.678) (61,712)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 2,27,484 3,07,820
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 2,04,15,084 10,89,01,563
Earnings per share
Basic (}) 29 3.36 18.10
Diluted (3) 29 3.36 18.10
Weighted average equity shares used in computing eamings per equity
share
Basic 29 60,000,000 60,00,000
Diluted 29 60,00,000 60,00,000
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 182
Contingent liabilities and commitments 30
Other notes to accounts o N o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even dale

FOR SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 011074N

L M
/ 6uresh Kumar Jajodia
Director Dir
Anshuman Goel DIN : 00201854 DIN : 06392340

Partner, ACA
Membership No. 55

Date : 21.04.2021
Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of

Tirupati Reels Private Limited
CIN: U20232DL2015PTC275797

=2 gAML

AR

Pradeep Ganshyambhai Ratnani
Company Secretary
Membership No.41096




TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2021

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 5,98,62,961 11,62,66,179
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1.66,28,462 1,40,57,070
Finance Income (9,20,991) (46,83,200)
Finance Cost 1,76,64,311 2,02,84,803
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)loss (60,41,137) 2,06,904
Sundry Advances written-off . 12,06,116
Operating profit before working capital changes 8,71,93,605 14,73,37,872
Movements in working capital :-
Trade Receivables (2,69,06,885) (72,17,720)
Inventories (1,95,54,435) (3.63,19,277)
Non-Current Assets (1.83,72,772) (20,22,003)
Financial Assels (6,800) -
Trade Payables 2,11,93,326 1,71,45,293
Non-Financial liabilities (6.30,889) (7.97,198)
Financial liabilities and provisions 4,74,423 (68,26,754)
Cash generated (outflow) from operations 4,33,89,574 11,13,00,213
Income lax paid (including TDS & advance tax & Refund) (1,03,94,196) (1.64.56,642)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (A) 3,29,95,377 9,48,43,571
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (34,21,790) (1,93,23,079)
Bank deposit placed (4,09,23,810) (6,82,61,860)
Bank deposit matured 2,00,48,795 4,19,43,493
Loan (given)/repaid (2,55,000) (4,36,047)
Interest received 8,38,556 45,67,688
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (B) (2,37,13,249) (4,15,09,805)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities (9.56.560) (10,43,520)
Repayment of long lerm borrowings (3,65,70,396) (7,15,57,703)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 3,34,74,129 5,20,64,086
Interest and other finance cost paid (1,74,08,550) (2,12,59,545)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (C) (2,06,22,266) (4,17,96,681)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,13,40,137) 1,15,37,085
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 1,15,80.679 43,504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 2,40,542 1,15,80,679
Net debt reconciliation Refer note no. 15
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2
Contingent liabilities and commitments 30
Other notes to accounts 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Stalements

As per our report of even date

FOR SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 011074N

R

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tirupati Reels Private Limited
CiN: U202320L2’0/1(5/‘P{,T0275797
Pocs . 2

¢ .

£uresh Kumar Jajodia
Anshuman Goel Director
Partner, ACA IN - 00201854 ; DIN : 06392840
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TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2021

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Retained earnings Total other equity

As at 01 April 2019 63,19,160 63,19,160
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (7,26,877) (7,26,877)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 55,92,283 55,92,283
Profit after tax for the year 10,85,93,743 10,85,93,743
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,07,820 3,07,820
As at 31 March 2020 11,44,93,846 11,44,93,846
Profit after tax for the year 2,01,87,600 2,01,87,600
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,27,484 2,27,484
As at 31 March 2021 13,49,08,930 13,49,08,930

Corporate Information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

Contingent liabilities and commitments 30

Other notes to accounts 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

I. Corporate Information

Tirupati Reels Private Limited (the *Company’) is a Private Limited Company (CIN-
U2023DL2015PTC27597) domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of
the Companics Act, 2013,

The Registered office of the company is situated at E-107, First Floor, Greater Kailash,
New Delhi-110048.

The Company is the manufacturers of Wooden Pallets, Outer Laggings and Cable Drums.
2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation: -

Statement of Compliance:

The Company prepared its Standalone financial statements to comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. These
Standalone financial statements includeBalance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash flows Statement and
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter
referred to as “financial statements™).

Basis of Measurement:
The Standalone Financial Statementsfor the year ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31
March 2020 has been prepared on an accrual basis and a historical cost convention, except
tor the following financial asscts and liabilitics which have been measured at fair value or
amortized cost at the end of each reporting period: -

-Derivative financial instruments,
- Certain financial asscts and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market pagt
measurement date.
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Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

Accounting policies and methods of computation followed in the financial statements are
l same as compared with the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
cxcept for adoption of new standard or any pronouncements effective from 1 April 2020.

Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet based on current / non-
current classification. Tt has been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria as sct out in the Division II of Schedule 111 to the
Companies Act, 2013.

| An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Functional and Presentation Currency: -
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs) which is the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements which also
include the accompanying notes have been rounded off up to two decimal places.
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Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

2.2 Use of estimates and judgments: -

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes, the Company is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities that arc not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The Company uses the following critical
accounting estimates in preparation of its financial statements:

4. Provisions

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past
events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations.
These provisions are reviewed at the end of cach reporting period and are adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. The timing of recognition requires application of judgment to
existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change.

. Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other
claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of

crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities.

Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. Contingent assets are

neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgments based on the relevant rulings in the areas of

allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while

determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent

that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which=t

temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.
Y
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Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unuscd tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategics. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgment to
reassess the carrying amount of delerred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If an indication exists, or when the annual impairment testing of the asset
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an assets or Cash-generating-unit's (CGU’s) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from the other assets or
group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds it rccoverable
amount, the asset is considered as impaired and it’s written down to its recoverable amount.

Employee benefits
The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the
Company to usc assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under employee
benefits note.

Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116, Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses
significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a
lease, or not to exercise an option 1o terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises
the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of lcases with similar characteristics.



Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

g. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic
relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and
business opcration of the company. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertaintics in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and
external sources of information including economic forecasts. The Company has performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the
carrying amount of all these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment’s are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to
its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property,
plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost
of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of property, plant and equipment that are not ready
for their intended use at the end of reporting period and are carried at cost comprising

dircct costs, related incidental expenses, and other directly attributable costs and
borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment’s is calculated on pro rata basis on
straight-line method using the management assesseduseful lives of the assets which is in
line withthe manner prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 201
Jlife is as follows: - "
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

Property, Plant and Useful life
Equipment (In Years)

. 30-60
Buildings

15
10

Plant & Equipments

Electrical Installations

10
Fumiture & fixtures

3-5
g8-10

Office Equipments

Vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively.Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction
and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of
all of its property, plant and equipment recognized as at | April 2015 measured as per the
previous GAAP and used that carrying valuc as the decmed cost of the property, plant
and equipment.

2.4 Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifics o be a lecase as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses
significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a
lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises
the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.




Tirupati Reels Private Limited
' Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

Right of use assets: -

(A) The Company as a lessee: -

! The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The

' - Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identificd asset, the Company assesscs
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the

. j lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(“ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable
lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable lease and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets arc initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lcase liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial dircct costs less any lcasc incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use
asscts arc cvaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
lesting, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
Icase payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country
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of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

| Lecase liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
i lease payments have been classificd as financing cash flows.
|

(B) Others: -
. The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial recognitions: -
I. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date.

' . Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases

| with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application, variable lease
and low value asset.
Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.
Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions
are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously
identificd as leases under Ind AS 17.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.0%, with maturity between 2021-
2024.

2.5 Inventories: -

Basis of Valuation: -

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition and its conversion cost where applicable.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Method of Valuation: -

The cost of inventorics has been determined by using FIFO Method and comprises all
costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax
authoritics) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventorics to their present
location and condition and its conversion cost where applicable.
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\ 2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank
and in hand, cheques in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of thrce
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
cash cquivalents consist of balances with banks which arc unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

2.7 Financial Instruments: -

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial assct of one entity
and a financial liability or equityinstrument of another entity.

| Financial Assets: -

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through Statement of Profit & Loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets are classified at
the initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value or as financials assets
measured at amortized cost.

(i) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets arc classificd in two broad
categorics:
A) Financials asscts at amortized cost
B) Financials asscts at fair value

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in
the Statement of Profit & Loss (i.c., fair value through Statement of Profit & Loss), or
recognized in other comprehensive income (i.c., fair value through other comprehensive
income).

(a) Financials asscts carricd at amortizedeost: -

A financials asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized
cost (net of Impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through Statement
of Profit & Loss under the fair value option.

i) Business Model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold
the financial assets to collect the contractual cash flow (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes).

i) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. -
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(b) (i) Financials assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: -
Financials assets is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collections contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dated to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. '

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

(ii) Financials assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently
fair valued through Statement of Profit & Loss.

(iii)  De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:
a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement: and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
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(iv)

a)

b)

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets: -
The Company assesscs impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for
the following:
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115
Other financial assets such as deposits, advances etc., the Company follows
‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly. lifetime ECL is used.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is
no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts (0 recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses the provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on its historical observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and its adjusted forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default ratcs arc updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period is recognized as other
expense in the statement of Statement of Profit & Loss.

NN
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Financial Liabilities: -

0]

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, lease liabilities and derivative financial
instruments.

(ii)  Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

b) Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/ losses
are not subscquently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

¢) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently

mcasured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

(iii) Derecognition: -
(a) A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
staterment of profit or loss.

(b) Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified

g &"‘;} P
‘\»}”& 4 i



Tirupati Reels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2021

debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is mcasured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognized less cumulative amortization.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currentlyenforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize theassets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.8 Revenue Recognition: -
IND AS 115 was made effective from | April 2018 and establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The new revenue standard
replaced IND AS 18 & IND AS 11 and interpretations on revenue recognition related to
sale of goods and services. The Company has applied the modified retrospective
approach and accordingly has included the impact of Ind AS 115.

(a) Measurement of Revenue
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for discounts, incentive schemes, if any, as per contracts with customers.
Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring good or service to a customer. Taxes collected
from customers on behalf of Government are not treated as Revenue.

(b) Revenue from Sale of goods
Performance obligation in case of Revenue from sale of goods is satisfied at a point in
time and 1s recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied and control as per
Ind AS 115 is transferred to the customer. The Company collects GST on behalf of the
Government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company.,
Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Revenue is disclosed net of discounts,
incentives and returns, as applicable.

(¢) Other Income
Other income is comprised primarily of interest income and gain/loss on translation of
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2.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Forcign currency transactions are recorded on initial rccognition in the functional
currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the Balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in forcign currency are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized as income or expense in the statement of Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.10 Employee benefit expense

i) Short-term employee benefits
All short-term employee benefits such as salarics, incentives, special awards, medical
benefits which are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services which entitles him to avail
such benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss account.A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Defined contribution plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and ‘Employer-Employee Scheme’
are defined contribution schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to
the provident fund and 'Employer Employee' scheme as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the funds. The Company's contributions to defined
contribution plans are charged to the statement of Statement of Profit & Loss as

incurred.

Defined benefit plan
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The costs of
providing benefits under this plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation
report at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements,
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comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the carlicr of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

2.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale arc capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset.  All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period they occur.

2.12 Income taxes

Tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act,
1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Income tax received /
receivable pertains to prior period recognized when reasonable certainty arise for refund
acknowledged by the Income-tax department.

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is measured using the tax
rates and the tax laws cnacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The effect of
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changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income
or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

At cach reporting date, the Company rc-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The
Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is
no longer reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down
is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilitics representing current tax and where
the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilitics relate to taxes on income levied by
the same governing taxation laws.

2.13Segment reporting

The company is mainly engaged manufacturing ofwooden pallets, outer Laggings and
Cable Drums and as such this is the only Reportable Segment as per Indian Accounting
Standard on Segment Reporting (IND AS 108) issued.

2.14Earnings Per share

Basic eamings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as fresh issue, bonus issue that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
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Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity sharcs that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

2.15Provisions, Contingent liabilities and commitments

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
cvent, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to scttle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

Capital Commitments includes the amount of outstanding LC issued by the bank to
parties on behalf of the company

2.16CASH FLOWS STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cashflows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.17Figures relating to previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them

comparable with the current year figures.

\
N




TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2021

3. Property, plant and equipment

The changes in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment for the year ended on 31 March 2021 are as follows :-

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Buildings Plant & Machinery Electrical Furniture & Fixtures Office Vehicles Computers Total Capital Work in
Installations Equipments Progress
Gross carrying value (at cost)
As at 01 April 2020 7.44,16,537 18,02,53,993 55,84,588 10,80,639 19,05,622 78,76,741 743,176 27,18,61,297 -
Additions 12,67,808 5,58,543 - 5,13,687 3,48,808 - 3,01,206 29,980,052 -
As at 31 March 2021 7,56,84,345 18,08,12,536 55,84,588 15,94,326 22,54,430 78,76,741 10,44,382 27,48,51,348 -
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01 April 2020 87,68,930 2,23,62,069 17,07.726 261,016 5,456,253 18,83,159 3,02.484 3,58,31,637 -
Depreciation charge for the period 23,82,610 1.13,04,713 5,26,610 1,22,928 3,77,157 9,39,124 2,43,789 1,58,96,930 -
As at 31 March 2021 1,11,51,540 3,36,66,781 22,34,335 3,83,944 9,23,410 28,22,283 5,46,273 5,17,28,566 -
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 6,45,32,805 14,71,45,755 33,50,253 12,10,382 13,31,021 50,54,458 4,98,110 22,31,22,782 -
The changes in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows - (All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
Buildings Plant & Machinery Electrical Furniture & Fixtures Office Vehicles Computers Total Capital Work in
Installations Equipments Progress
Gross carrying value (at cost)
As at 01 April 2019 7,37.41612 10,88,53.724 53,26,379 9,09,089 14,61,125 52,74,376 4,18,759 19,59,85,065 6,24 45,448
Additions 6,74,925 7,14,00,269 2,58,209 1,71,550 4,44 497 26,02,365 3.24.417 7,58,76,232 -
Transfer (Refer below note c) - - - - - - - - (6.24,45,448)
As at 31 March 2020 7,44,16,537 18,02,53,993 55,84,588 10,80,639 19,05,622 78,76,741 743,176 27,18,61,297 -
Accumulated depreciation -
As at 01 Apnl 2019 64,29,980 1,32,73,103 11,89,736 1,69,377 2,58,928 10,53,485 1,21.489 2,25,06,099 -
Depreciation charge for the year 23,38,950 90,88.965 5,07.990 91,639 2.87,326 8,29,674 1,80,994 1,33,25,538 -
As at 31 March 2020 87,68,930 2,23,62,069 17,07,726 2,61,016 5,46,253 18,83,159 3,02,484 3,58,31,637 -
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2020 6,56,47,607 15,78,91,925 38,76,862 8,19,623 13,539,369 59,93,582 4,40,693 23,60,29,660 -

Notes :-

(a) All property, plant and equipment are held in name of the Company.
(b) The Building of the company has been constructed on leasehold land awned by the promoters of joint venture pariner i.e Tirupati Trade Links Pvt Ltd.
(c) Assets Under Capital Work In Progress :- Capitalised during the period ended 31 March 2021 Rs. Nil (31 March 2020 Rs 6,24,45,448). It have been shown in addition in respective class of Property, Plant and equipments

and as transfers in capital work in Progress.

(d) Direct capitalisation of Property, Plant and Equipment’s during the period and year are given as under =-

FY 2020-21
FY 2018-20

Buildings

12,67.808
6,74,925

Plant & Machinery Electrical Furniture & Fixtures Office
Installations Eaquipments
5,58,543 - 5,13,687 3,48,808
89,54,821 2.58,209 1.71.550 4,44 497

/

Vehicles

26,02,365

O A

R =

Computers

3,01,206
3.24417

Total

29,90,052
1,34,30,784
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4. Right of use assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right to use of assests for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2021

Gross carrying value

As at 01 April 2020 36,57,650

As at 31 March 2021 36,57,650

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2020 (7,31,532)
Depreciation charge for the periad (7,31,532)
As at 31 March 2021 (14,63,064)
Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2021 21,94,586

Fallowing are the changes in the carrying value of right to use of assets for the year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying value

As at 01 April 2019

As at 31 March 2020
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year
As at 31 March 2020

Net carrying value

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
36,57,650
36,57,650

(7.31,532)
(7,31,532)

29,26,118

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2021& 31 March 2020

Nen-current lease liabilities
Currenl lease liabilities

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
29,51,278
10,33,521 | 748,731
29,51,278 37,00,009

The following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended on 31 March 2021 & 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
As at 01 April 2020 37,00,009 43,84,528
Finance cost accrued during the period 2,94,790 3,59,001
Rent payable transfer to trade payable (86,961) -
Payment of lease habilities (9,56,560) (10,43,520)
29,51,278 37,00,009

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss :-

Depreciation expense of right-to-use assets
Interesl expense on lease liabilities

(Allamounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

7,31,532 7.31,532
2,094,790 3,59,001
10,26,322 10,90,533

5 Loans
A Loans Noncurrent

Security Deposits, Other than Rental Deposits, Unsecured, considered good

B Loans - Current

(Allamounts in Rs uniess othermse stated)

31 March 2020
12,86,027 12,79,227
 12,86,027 | 12,79.227

(All amounts in Rs unless othermse slated)

31 March 2020
Security Deposits, for Rental, Unsecured, considered good 2,55,000 *
— 2,55,000 -
6. Other financial assels
A e tnanoal assels - Non-current
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 2,25,00,000 1,07,24,985
. 2,25,00,000 1,07,24,985

Rs. 2.25,00.000/- (31 March 2020: Rs, 46,90,534/- ) is restrited for withdrawal, as it is lien against Letter of Credit (LC) given by the bank to the company.
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B

~

Net current income tax asset / (liability) at the end

Other financial assets
Oliser inancral assels - current

(Al amounts in Rs unless olherwise slated)

31 March 2020
Others
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2,28,556 1,46.120
. 2,28,556 1,46,120

Income taxes
Income lax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises :-
(All amounts in Rs uniess otherwise stated)

(ot For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current Income tax :
In respect of current period 1,00,06,145 | 1.94,07.936
Adjustments of tax relating lo earlier period 19.73,267 | 15,492
Deferred tax :
In respect of current period 2,76,95,948 (1.17.60,992)

o 3,96,75,361 76,72,436

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate :-
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)
RTS8 For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 5,98,62,961 11,62,66,179
Enacted tax rates in india 27.82% 16.69%
Computed expecled tax expenses 1,66,53.876 1,94,07,151
Effect of differential tax impact due to the following (tax benefit)/ tax expenses:
Expenses not allowed/Previous Year Expenses allowed for tax purpose (16,50,278) 717
MAT Credil brought forward adjusted (49,97.453) 5

1,00,06,145 1,94,07, 867

. The details of Non-currenl/ (Current) tax assets / (liabilities) as al 31 March 2021

(All amournits in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
Non-current lax assets (net of provision for taxation) - 3,73.832
Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax and TDS & TCS) (52,68,268) (40.,56.883)

(52,68,268) (36,83,051)

The movement in the gross current tax assets/(liability) for the year ended on 31 March 2021
(ANl amounts in Rs unless otherwise staled)

31 March 2020
Net current tax assel / (liability) at the beginning (36,83,051) (10,67,319)
Income tax Refund received .
Income lax Paid 1,68,07,695
Current lax expense (1,94,23,427)
Net current tax asset / (liability) at the end (52,68,268) (36,83,051)
The movement in gross deferred tax assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
Carring value as at ' Changes through  Changes through Carring value as at
01 Aprit 20 profit and loss oCi 31 March 21
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels (1,19,02,508) (99,71,267) - (2,18,73,775)
Provision for employee benefits 93,274 1,832,381 (87,678) 1,37.976
Others 2,19,41,409 (1,78,567,063) - 40,84 346
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 1,01,32,175 (2,76,95,949) (87,678) (1,76,51,452)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Carring value as al Changes through  Changes through Carring value as at

01 April 19 profit and loss oci 31 March 20
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels (1,13,06,458) {5,96.050) - (1,19,02.508)
Provision for employee benefits 1,34,250 20,736 (61.712) 93,274
Others 96,15,102 1,23,26,307 - 2,19,41,409
Total deferred tax ts / (liabilities) (15,57,105) 1,17,50,992 (61,712) 1,01,32,175
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7.

Income laxes

F  Reconciliation of deferred tax assels/ liabilities (net) :-

10.

11.

12

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
Nel deferred tax asset / (liability) al the beginning 1,01,32,175 (15,57,105)
Tax (income)expense recognised in profit or loss (2,76,95,949) 1,17.50,992
Tax (income)/expense recognised in OCI (87,678) (61,712)
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) at the end (1,76,51,452) 1,01,32,175

Note:

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and defarred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Inventories

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)

31 March 2020
Raw malerials 11,07,18,853 8,98,18,889
‘Work-in-progress 1,10,06,182 1,32,83,791
Finished goods 2,12,066 13,55,768
Slores and spares 68,67,086 47.91,295
12,88,04,188 10,92,49,753

Notes :-

(a) The above includes goods in transit as under -

Raw Materials

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

1,75,22,394 |

31 March 2020
4,32,19,944

(b) The above includes inventories held by third parties amouting to Rs 6,28,123/- (31 March 2020 Rs 29,44,000)

(c) Invenlories are valued at the lower of cosl and nel realisable value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables - unsecured considered good

Receivables from related parties - unsecured considered good

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

3,82,33,657
11,70,29,940
15,52,63,497

31 March 2020
4,18,64,279
8,64.92,332

12,83,56,611

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
In Current Account
Cash in hand

(All amounts in Rs unless atherwise stated)

2,18.149
22,393
2,40,542

31 March 2020

1,15,45674
35,005
1,15,80,679

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months bul less than 12 months 3.04,00,000 2,13,00,000
3,04,00,000 2,13,00,000

Note

Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: Nil ) is restrited for withdrawal, as it is lien agains| Letler of Credit (LC) given by the bank 1o the company.

Other assels

Advances other than capital advances, Unsecured, considered good
Advances for materials and services

Others
Prepaid expenses

Balances with statutory/qovernment authorities

Advances to employees

Share capilal

Authorised Share Capital

Equity shares, Rs 10 per value 60,00,000 (as on 31.03.2021 : 60,00,000 equity shares) equity shares
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares, Rs. 10 per value 60,00,000 (as on 31.03.2021 : 60,00,000 equity shares) equity shares

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
32,05210 13,93.628
11,63.809 3.,08,968
4,13,93,789 2,54,75.347
2,59,502 471,697
- 4,60,22,410 2,76,49,638

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

6,00,00,000

6.00,00,000 |
6,00,00,000 |

31 March 2020
6,00,00,000

6.00,00,000
6,00,00,000

\
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Note:
(a) Termsl rights attached to equity shares :
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vole per share.

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaralions received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has issued Nil shares of Rs 10/- as fully paid up pursuant to contracl(s) without payment being received in cash, or by way of bonus
shares out of free reserves during the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which Balance Sheel is prepared.

The company has not bought any shares by way of buy back during the period of five years immediately preceding date as at which Balance Sheet is
prepared.

There are no calls unpaid on issued shares.
No Shares have been forfeited by the company.

(b) Share of The Company Held By Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company

(Number of share)
At31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Polycab India Limited 33,00,000 55% 33,00,000 55%
33,00,000 55% 33,00,000 55%
(c) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as follows :-
At 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of Shares 1% holding No. of Shares % holding
Palycab India Limited 33,00,000 55.00% 33,00,000 55.00%
Equity shares, Rs 10 per value 60,00,000 (as on 31.03.2021 : 60,00,000 equity shares) equity shares
Tirupati TradeLinks Private Limiled 27,00,000 45.00% 27,00,000 45.00%

Other equity

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020

Retained earnings

Opening Balance 11,44,93,845 63,189,158
Add - Profit during the year 2,04,15,084 10,89,01,564
Less * Transition impact of Ind AS 116 - (7,26,877)

- 13,49,08,930 11,44,93,845

. Borrowings

B rowinis- non-current

{All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
Rupee loan (secured)
Indian rupee loan from HOFC Bank 11,18,80.603 11,49,76,870
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note No 16 (B)) (4,53,94,067) (3,83,59,034)
S 6,64,86,536 7,66,17,836

Note:
(a) The above loans are secured by way of :-

Loan from HDFC Bank is secured against hypothecation of a) Stock in trade both present & Future consisting of raw malerial, finished goods, goods in
process of manufacturing; b) Book debts & receivables; c) Plant & Machinery,

(b) Loan from HDFC bank is secured against mortgage of Collateral Security of : (3) Survey No 79/1 Gandhidham, Padana-370201 NH-8A having area of
43087 .63 sg. feel. ; (b) Survey No 79/2 Gandhidham, Padana - 370201 NH-8A having area of 107639.15 sq. feel ; (c) Survey No. 79/3 Gandhidham,
Padana-370201 NH-8A having area of 37146.35 sq. feet. ; (d) Survey No 80/2 Gandhidham, Padana-370201 NH-8A having area of 128564.86 sq. feet.

(c) Working Capital Term Loan under ECLGS from HDFC Bank of Rs. 2,34,59,000 was santioned and procured during the period and is secured against lhe
personal guranttee of : (a) Pratik Suresh Jajodia (b) Suresh Kumar Jajodia (c) Anita Devi Jajodia (d) Nihkil & Jajodia (e) M/s Tirupali Tradelinks Private
Limited.

(c) Maturity profile of non-current borrowings for the period ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rs unless othenwise stated)

Rate of Interest <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
Rupee loan

HDFC Bank: 82729026 8.40% 39,09,067 12,00,790 -
HDFC Bank: 82729029 8.40% 25,83.433 11,45,596 -
HDFZ Bank: 82729030 8.40% 17.13,235 6,00,193 -
HDFC Bank: 82728031 8.40% 81,57,125 43,76,997 -
HDFC Bank: 82783193 8.40% 60,70,269 89,54,219 -
HDFC Bank: 82729028 8.40% 11,99,487 4,20,215 -
HDFC Bank: 82621796 8.40% 49,24 077 15,12,590 -
HOFC Bank: 51502585 8.40% - -
HDFC Bank: 54791316 8.40% - - -
HDFC Bank: 83669162 8.40% 1,17,02,365 2,71,33,058 21,50,381
HOFC Bank: 94948417 8.40% 4,10,105 2,58,400 -
HOFC Bank: 8323924 8.25% 47,24 904 1,58,32,806 29,01,290

4,53,94,067 6,14,34,864 50,51,671
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Borrowings

Bt s is- nor-currenm

Maturity profile of non-current borrowings for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

Rate of Interest <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
Rupee loan
HDFC Bank: 82729026 9.45% 37,67,037 39,683,932 -
HDFC Bank: 82729029 945% 23,980,621 30,04,880 -
HDFC Bank: 827298030 9.45% 15,86,750 18,35,556 -
HDFC Bank: 82729031 9.45% 75,41,329 1,02,41,134 -
HOFC Bank: 82783193 945% 55,63,019 1,28,27,483 4,03,013
HDFC Bank: 82729028 9.45% 11,10,932 12,85,130 -
HOFC Bank: 82621796 9.45% 47,45,196 50,18,382 -
HDFC Bank: 51502585 B.52% 1,63,326 = =
HODFC Bank: 54791316 8.55% 4,98,461 - -
HOFC Bank: 83669162 9.45% 1,06,20,432 2,44 89,116 1,28,60,703
HOFC Bank: 94948417 9.81% 3,71.933 6,68,506 -
e 3,83,59,034 6,33,54,119 1,32,63,716
(c) Others

(iy Amount outstanding against the loan No. 82729026 is Rs. 51,09,857/- repayable in 15 EMI (11 EMI of Rs. 3,61,593/- each and last four EMI's of
Rs. 2,06,673/-, Rs. 4,43,326/-, Rs.4,39,915/- and Rs. 3,33,634/- respectively) and Loan will end in the month of June, 2022.

(i) Amount outslanding against the loan No. 82729029 is Rs. 37,29,028/- repayable in 17 EMI (13 EMI of Rs. 2,33,226/- each and last four EMI's of
Rs. 149.217/-, Rs. 2,90,465/-, Rs. 2,88,230/-, and Rs. 2,09,265/- respeclively) and Loan will end in the month of August, 2022.

(iil) Amount outstanding against the loan No. 82729030 is Rs. 23,13,428/- repayable in 16 EMI (12 EMI of Rs. 1,53.550/- each and last four EMI's of
Rs. 92,915/-, Rs, 189,740/-, 188,280/~ and 140,291/- respectively) and Loan will end in the month of July, 2022.

(iv) Amount outstanding against the loan No. 82729031 is Rs. 1,25,34,122/- repayable in 18 EMI (14 EMI of Rs. 7,41,724/- each and last four EMI's of
Rs. 501,004/-, Rs. 931,034/-, Rs. 923,871/-, and Rs. 674,265/- respectively) and Loan will end in the month of September. 2022.

(v) Amount outstanding against the loan No. 82783193 is Rs. 1,50,24,488/- repayable in 28 EMI (24 EMI of Rs. 591,846/ each and lasl four EMI's of
Rs. 406,187/-, Rs. 8,03,524/-, Rs. 7,97,342/- and Rs. 3,88,045/- respectively ) and Loan will end in the manth of July, 2023.

(vi) Amount outstanding againsl the loan No. 82729028 is Rs. 16,19,702/- repayable in 16 EMI (12 EMI of Rs.1,07,505/- each and last Four EMI's of
Rs. 65,054/-, Rs.132,843/-, Rs. 131,821/- and Rs, 98,222/- respeclively) and Loan will end in the month of July, 2022.

(vii) Amount autstanding against the loan No. 82621796 is Rs. 64,36,667/- repayable in 15 EMI (11 EMI of Rs. 4.55,485/- each and last Four EMI's of
Rs, 260,309/-, Rs. 5,58,441/-, Rs. 5,54,145/- and Rs. 4,20,267/- raspectively ) and Loan will end in the month of June, 2022.

(vill) Amount outstanding against the Car loan No. 51502585 is Nil and Loan has closed in the month of Oclober, 2020,

(ix) Amount outstanding against the Car loan No. 54791316 is Nil and Loan has closed in the month of February, 2021.

(x) Amount oulstanding against the Joan No. 83669162 is Rs. 4,09,85,604/- repayable in 38 EMI (35 EMI of Rs. 12,256,120/- each and lasl three EMI's
of Rs. 17,99,015/- Rs. 17,85,175/- and Rs. 3,82,921/- respectively), Loan will end in the month of May, 2024,

(x1) Amount oulstanding against the loan No. 94848417 is Rs. 6,68,505!- repayable in 19 EMI of Rs. 38,131/- each and Loan will end in the month of
Oclober, 2022.

(xi) Amount outstanding against the loan No. 8323824 is Rs. 2,34,59,000/- repayable in 40 EMI (4 EMI of Rs. 1,61,281/- each and 36 EMI's of Rs.
7.37.828/-) and Loan will end in the manth of July, 2024.

B Borruwmas- clrrent
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020
Cash Credil from banks (Secured) 8,39,111 -
, 8,39,111 | -
Note:

(a) Cash credit facility is repayable on demand and the cash credit obtained is secured by way of hypothecation charge of entire current assels (bath
present & future).

(b) Credit facilities
The company has fund based and non-fund based revolving credit facilities amounting 1o Rs 25,00,00,000/- (31 March 2020 : Rs 18,50,00,000), towards
-operational requirements that can be used far the short term loan, issuance of letters of credit and bank guarantees. The unutilised credit line out of
lhese working capital facilities al the year end are given as below :-

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

| 31 March 2020
Fund based 2,41,60,889 2,50,00,000
Nan fund based 5,15,64,504 | 13,82,44,044

7,57,25,393 | 16,32,44,044




TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2021

(c) Net Debt Reconciliation (All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)
Non-Current Current Total
: Borrowinas Borrowinas

As at 1 April 2019 13,51,46,697 84,96,539 14,36,43,236
Cash Flows (Net) (1.84,93,617) (72,38,466) (2,67,32,083)
Interest Expense 1,18,35,663 45,13,070 1,63,48,733
Interest Paid (1,19,11,333) (57,71,143) (1,76,82,476)
As at 31 March 2020 11,55,77,410 . 11,55,77,410
Cash Flows (Net) (30,96,267) 8,39,111 (22,57,156)
Interest Expense 1,07,37,971 6,34,111 1,13,72,082
Interest Paid (1,07,77,000) (6,34,111) (1,14,11,111)
As at 31 March 2021 11,24,42,114 8,391 11,32,81,225

Breakup of Debt as at period end
As at 1 April 2019

Borrowing 13,44,70,487 72,38,466 14,17,08,953
Interest Accrued 6,76,210 12,58,073 19,34,283
Total 13,51,46,697 84,96,539 14,36,43,236
As at 31 March 2020

Borrowing 11,49,76,870 - 11,49,76,870
Accrued Interest 6,00,540 - 6,00,540
Total 11,55,77,410 - 11,55,77,410
As at 31 March 2021

Borrowing 11,18,80,603 8,39,111 11,27,19,714
Accrued Interest 561,51 - 5,61,511
Total 11,24,42,114 8,39,111 11,32,81,225

16. Other financial liabilities

A Ciber frannial habiities: non-current
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise staled)
31 March 2020
Lease Liability 18,17.756 29,51,278
19,17,756 29,51,278

B Oiher financial habilities- current
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020

Current Maturities of long-term borrowings - Refer Annexure - Note. 15(A) 4,53,94,067 3,83,59,034
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 561,51 6.00,540
Creditors for capital expendilure - 431,738
Lease Liability 10,33,521 748,731

4,69,89,100 4,01,40,043

17. Provisions
A Provasions- nor-careett
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note - 25)
Graluity 7.10,867 555,180
o 7,10,867 5,55,190
B Prowvisions current
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020
Pravision for employee benefits (Refer Note - 25)
Gratuity 6,920 3,336
6,920 | 3,336

18. Trade payables
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)

31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Trade payables - Others 4,12,900

Trade payables lo related parties 4.86,30,989
Tolal oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises |

Trade payables - Others ‘ 23,06.86,373 | 6,05,13,701

Trade payables lo related parties f 4,40,87,185 14,99,76.818
- N i 27,47,73,550 25,95,34,408

N\ '




TIRUPATI REELS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2021

Note:
{a) During the year the company has not any received memorandum from Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in Micro, Small, Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.

(All amounts in Rs unless olhernwise slated)
31 March 2020

(i) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED

Principal - 4,90,43,889
Interest -

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with - -
the amounts of the payment made lo the supplier beyond the appoinled day during each accounting
year.

(iii) The ampunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been -
paid bul beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act.

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year - -

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such - -
dale when Ihe interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

19, Other habihties
(All amounts in Rs unless olherwise slated)

31 March 2020
Advance from customers 5,26,823
Other statutory dues :
Employee Recoveries and Employer Contributions 165,812
Taxes Payable (Other than Income tax) 7.03,344
13,095,979




20. Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from Sale of Products

Finished goods

Traded goods

Sale of Services

Job Work Income

Other operating revenue
Scrap Sales
Total revenue from contracts with customers/ operations

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)

For the period ended
31 March 2021
66,51,09,073

4,10,809

13.91,634
66,69,11,516

46,48,884

67,15,60,401

For the period ended
31 March 2020

83,57,15,930
7,79.33,376

14,84,108
91,51,33,414

2,513
91,51,35,927

Note:
(a) Disaggregated revenue information

Type of Goods & Services

Wooden Drums, Quter Lagging & Pallets
Trading of goods - Timber & Hardwares

Job Work Income

Others

Total revenue from contracts with customers
Location of customer

India

Qutside India

Total revenue from contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition

Goads and Services transferred at s point in time
Total revenue from contracts with customers

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended
31 March 2021

66,51,09,073
4,10,809
13,981,634
46,48,884
67,15,60,401

66,71,33,224
4427176
67,15,60,401

67,15,60,401

67,15,60,401

For the period ended
31 March 2020

83,57,15,930
7,79,33,376
14,84,108
2513
91,51,35,927

91,51,10,701
25,226
91,51,35,927

91,51,35,927
91,51,35,927

(b) Reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with customers :-

Revenue as per contracted price
Less : Adjustments

Price adjustments such as Discounts, Rebates and Sales Promotion Schemes

Revenue from contract with customers

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

“For the period ended
" 31 March 2021

67,15,60,401

67,15,60,401

For the period ended
31 March 2020
91,62,17,707

(81,780)
91,51,35,927

21. Other income

(a) Interest income on financial assets
Carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits
Others
(b) Other non-operating income
Exchange differences (net)
Miscellaneous income

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended
31 March 2021

8,25,796
95,195

60,41,139
12,683

69,74,813 |

For the period ended
31 March 2020

6,57,118
40,26,082

21,870
~47,05,070

22. Cost of materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the period
Add . Purchases

Less : Inventories at the end of the period

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)
For the period ended

31 March 2021
4,91,48,376
52,21,38,292

57,12,86,668 |
9,31,96,459 |

‘ 47,80,90,210

For the period ended
31 March 2020
5,91,43,659
59,57 67,876
65,49,11,535
5,13,90,250
60,35,21,286

=

A



23.

24.

25,

Notes :
Details of Material Consumed

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slaled)

I BEE LGN LELE  For the period ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Sawn Timber 42,36,43,446 58,48,71,623
Others 5,44,46,764 1,86.49,662
o 47,80,90,210 | 60,35,21,285

Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded goods

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
For the period ended

31 March 2021
3,66,794
3,66,794

For the period ended
31 March 2020

6,85,72,203

6,85,72,203

Change in Inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

(All amounts in Rs uniess otherwise stated)

For the period ended
31 March 2021

For the period ended
31 March 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the period

Work-in-progress 1,32,83,791 51,55,480

Finished goods 13,55,768 -
1,46,39,559 51,55,480

Inventory at the end of the period

Work-in-progress 1,10,06,182 1,32,83,791

Finished goods 2,12,066 13,55,768
1,12,18,248 1,46,39,559

Changes in Inventories 34,21,311 (94,84,079)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expense

For the period ended
31 March 2021
2,69,26,857

10,44 983
7,12,876
2,86,84,716

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended
31 March 2020

2,04,56,993

127,167

3,89,300

2,15,73,450

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
(A) Defined Benefit plan
Gratuity Valuation - As per actuary

The Company operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity for its employees (Unfunded). Under the gratuity plan, every employee
who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed

year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts

recognized in the balance sheel for gratuity.

Statement of profit and loss
Net employee benefits expense recognised in profit or loss :

Current service cosl
Net interest cost
Net benefits expense

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended
31 March 2021

4,36,332

| 38,001
‘ 4,74,423

For the period ended
31 March 2020

3,71,540

40,172

4,11,712

Net remeasurement (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans recognised in Other comprehensive income for the period :

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slaled)

i Ze g UL UGG ERL LR For the period ended

{nd 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Actuarial (gain)/ioss on obligations WZ : (3,15,162) (3,69,532)
Net (Income)/Expense for the year recognized in’—'QBl, 7 | (3,15,162)| (3,69,532)




25. Employee benefits expense
Balance sheet
Benefits liability

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Plan liability

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

7,17,787

717,787 |

31 March 2020
5,58,526 |
5,58,526

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slaled)

31 March 2020

Opening defined benefil obligation 5.58.526 516,346
Interest cost 38,091 40,172
Current service cost 4,36,332 3,71,540
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations

Due to change in financial assumptions (16,257) 80,468

Due to experience (2,98,905) (4,50,000)
Closing defined benefit obligation 7,17,787 5,58,526

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Investment with insurer

0.00%

31 March 2020
0.00%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:

31 March 2020

Discount rate 6.96% 6.82%
Expected rate of return on plan assets N.A. N.A.

Employee tumover 2.00% 2.00%
Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%

Mortality rate during employment
Mortality rate after employment

N.A,

Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08)

Indian assured lives
mortality {2006-08)

N.A.

The average expected future service as at 31 March 2021 is 20 years (31 March 2020 - 20 years).
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant faclors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The overall expected rale of relum on plan assels is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable lo

the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2021 & 31 March 2020 is as shown below :-

Sensitivity analysis

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2020

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 7,17,787 5,58,526
Della effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (1,02,531) (83,460)
Delia effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 1,28,392 1,05,115
Delia effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 1,28,339 1,04,916
Della effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (1,04,340) (84,749)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee tumover (2,231) (3,086)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnaver B 1,478

Usefulness and methodology adopted for sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different
count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters
of the sensitivity analysis.

Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation from the fund :-
(All amounts in Rs unless olherwise stated)
31 March 2020

1st following year 6,920 3,336
2nd following year 8,935 6,784
3rd following year 13,053 10,393
4th following year 18,048 14,114
5th following year 22,862 17,349
Sum of years 6 to 10 1,67,910 1,04,531
Sum of years 11 and above e B . 26,38,412 21,30,425




25.

26.

28.

B

Employee benefits expense

(B) Other Defined Benefit and contribution Plans
Provident Fund
The Company contribute towards Provident Fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the
schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company
contributes towards Provident Fund managed by Central Government and has recognised Rs. 10,01,968/- (31 March 2020 Rs.
7.27,157/-) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finance cost
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

R L EL L GG EVE  For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest expense on financial liabilities at Amortised Cosl # 1,13,72,082 | 1,63.48,733
Interest expense on financial liabilities at FVTPL 294,790 | 3,59,001
Other borrowing costs * 59,97.439 35,77,069
1,76,64,311 2,02,84,803

# Interest expense includes Rs. 82,794/- (31 Mar 2020 Rs. 9,506/-) paid / payable to Income Tax Department.
* Other borrowing costs includes bank commission charges, letter of credit charges and other ancillary costs incurred in connection with
borrowings.

. Depreciation and amortisation expenses

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
el@ RO LG EES  For the period ended
31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 3) 1,58,96,930 1,33,25,538
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 4) 7.31,532 7.31,532
1,66,28,462 1,40,57,070

Other expenses
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

TR GEE LT GELRER  For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
! 41,43,965 55,75,444

Consumption of Stores & Spares .
Sawing expenses | 2,21,86,778 2,59,44,599
Power and fuel 74,58,989 73,13,389
Rales and taxes 3.21,151 17,616
Insurance 13,60,767 570,138
Repairs and Maintenance :-

Plant and Machinery 47,60,992 59,39,524

Buildings 73,602 2,57,688

Others 12,567,286 7,056,723
Advertising and sales promotion 1,34,018 3,45,872
Travelling and conveyance 4,24,385 12,25,932
Communicalion Cost 32,226 27.763
Legal and professional fees 10,08,723 10,24 644
Freight & forwarding expenses 2,62,67,494 3,20,69,243
Payment to Auditors (Refer Nole (a) below) 11,42,000 9,80.000
Sundry Balances written off - 12,06,116
CSR expenditure (Refer Note (b) below) 8,51,825 -
Miscellaneous expenses 23,92,252 18,46,394

| 7,38,16,450 8,50,50,085

O\ M%&W
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28. Other expenses
Notes :

(a)

(b)

Payments to auditor :-
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
For the period ended JETEGEN L EGTE

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Audil Fees 6,00,000 6,00,000
Taxation 1,560,000 -
Other Services 3,92,000 3,80,000
11,42,000 9,80,000

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses :-
(i) No amount has been spent on construction / acquisition of an asset of the company.

(i) CSR spent consist of the following :
EEEETRTTINE 31 March 2020

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year as per the
provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. 2% of average net

profits for last three financial years, calculated as per section 198 of the 851,825 B
Companies Act, 2013.

Gross amount spent by the company during the financial year i - c
Shortfall/(excess) 8,51,825 ‘ -

Note :-The company has spent the above amount after the end of financial year towards an on going project directly by purchasing
of machineries & accessories items related to setting up of oxygen supply facilities at COVID-19 centre.




29 Earnings per share
For the period ended
31 March 2021

For the period ended
31 March 2020

Profit after taxation Rs 2,01,87,600 10,85,93,743
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted

earning per share Number 60,00,000 60,00,000
Earnings per shares - Basic and diluted (one equity share of

Rs 10 each) Rs 3.36 18.10
T

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit afler tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

30. Contingent liabilities and commitments
(A} Contingent habilities (1o the extent not provided for)
Nil

| B Cotnninients

Estimated amounts of outstanding Letters of Credit al the end of the period is Rs. 17,34,35,496/- (Previous Year Rs. 4,67,55,956).

31. Related party disclosure
(A) Holding Company
Polycab India Limited

—

{ (B) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel
Tirupati Tradelink Private Limited

(C) Enterprises owned & controlled by Holding Company

Ryker Base Private Limited

—

(D) Key management personnel
(i) Executive directors

Inder Thakurdas Jaisinghani Director

: Suresh Kumar Jajodia Director

J; Pralik Suresh Jajodia Director

| Rishikesh Suresh Rajurkar Director

| Pradeep Ganshyambhai Ratnani Company Secretary w.e.f. 05.12.2020
Hiral Sumeet Baldaniya Company Secretary uplo 09.11.2020

| (ii) Relatives of Key management personnel

| Anita Devi Jajodia Wife of Suresh Kumar Jajodia & Mother of Pratik Suresh Jajodia
Nikhil Jajodia Son of Suresh Kumar Jajodia & Brother of Pratik Suresh Jajodia




31. Related parly disclosure

(E) Transactions with group companies

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

AUERELGLEINESER  For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i) Sale of goods (including GST)
Polycab India Limited Holding 61,36,40,801 82,10,36,874
Enterprises owned &
Ryker Base Private Limited controlled by Holding - 1,42,570 -
Company
(ii) Purchase of goods (including GST)
Polycab India Limited Holding 2,55,18,218 | 38,01,96,505
Enterprises owned or
; : ; ; i significantly influenced by
Tirupati Tradelink Private Limited key managerial personnel 11,65,08,244 19,25,46,204
(iif) Purchase of Fixed Assets (including GST)
Enterprises owned or
) ) ) . significantly influenced by
Tirupati Tradelink Private Limited key managerial personnel - 15,34,000
(iv) Sub-contracting expense (including GST)
Enterprises owned or
: " . . significantly influenced by
Tirupati Tradelink Private Limited key managerial personnel 10,01,204 27,94,580
(v} Commission (including GST)
Polycab India Limited Holding | 30,68,000 2,16,667
1
(vi) Interest Paid ‘
Polycab India Limited Holding - 41,76,921
(vii) Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses
Polycab India Limited Holding 35,400 12,944
(viii) Acceptance of Loan
Polycab India Limited Halding - 4,00,00,000
(ix) Repayment of Loan
Polycab India Limited Holding - 4,00,00,000
(F) Outstanding as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020 (All amounts in Rs unless otherwise slated)
31 March 2020
(i) Trade Receivables
Polycab India Limited Holding 11,70,29,940 8,64,92,332
(ii) Trade Payables
Polycab India Limited Holding 31,898,472 14,99,76,818
Enterprises owned or
ignificantly i ed b
Tirupati Tradelink Private; sigralicantt Influsnces] by 4,08,88,714 4,86,30,989

key managerial personnel

|
|

-



31. Related party disclosure
(G) Transactions with KMP :-
(i) Remuneration paid for the year ended March 2021 :-

(H

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
O EEELGLEL LIV For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Director

Pratik Suresh Jajodia 24,00,000 19,20,000
Company Secretary

Pradeep Ganshyambhai Ratnani 67.985 -
Hiral Sumeet Baldaniya | 1,44,000 | 2,16,000

(i) Rent paid for the year ended March 2021 :-

Director
Pratik Suresh Jajodia

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

@ TR LR LEL B For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
? \
4‘ 1,26,000 | 1,26,000
| 2,31,900 | 2,31,900

(iii) Reimbursement of Expenses for the year ended March 2021 :-

Director
Suresh Kumar Jajodia

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

I8 YL BN For the period ended
31 March 2021

. 1,02,559

(iv) Outstanding as on 31.03.2021 & 31.03.2020

Director
Suresh Kumar Jajodia
Pralik Suresh Jajodia

Amount Payable
Amount Payable

31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise staled)
31 March 2020

17,392

1,39,800 | 5,76,962

Transactions with relatives of KMP :-

(i) Remuneration paid for the year ended March 2021 :-

Nikhil Jajodia

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

A GTE L P L For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
~24,00,000 16,80,000

(i) Rent paid for the year ended March 2021 :-

(All amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)

TR GEEHEE NP For the period ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Anita Devi Jajodia \ 4,41420 | 441420
Nikhil Jajodia 2,44,200 2,44,200

(iii) Outstanding as on 31.03.2021 and 31.03.2020

Nikhil Jajodia
Anita Devi Jajodia
Nikhil Jajodia

Amount Payable
Amount Payable

Amount Receivable

(Al amounts in Rs unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2020
1,45,019 -
: 33,106 | -
} - 1,18,016

As per our report of even date
FOR SANJAY CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 01

=z

fe s
Anshuman Goel .‘\ﬁ; *
Partner, ACA \t?; /
Membership No. 5577977 /4
\?;‘::Cd AC‘:'G\ /

e

Dale . 21.04.2021
Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tirupati Reels Private Limited
CIN: U20232DL2015PTC275797

¥ < \ / -
e 5
i
uresh Kumar Jajodia

Director

A[\JIN : 00201854

Nt

N

= r\
DIN : 06392840

Pradeep Ganshyambhai Ratnani

Company Secrelary
Membership No.41096
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